
    

 
 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                      PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                  FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

NOVEMBER 19, 2020 
6:00PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

 
II. ROLL CALL:   

 
III. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Approve regular Planning and Zoning 

Board meeting minutes from October 15, 2020. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: None 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

A. First Baptist Church Village Park Campus Preliminary and Final Plat (Alternate Keys 
3911258 & 1287863) 

 
Preliminary and Final plat applications submitted by Kaye Jameson, Clymer, Farner & 
Barley, Inc., on behalf of Art Ayris, First Baptist Church of Leesburg. Proposed 
subdivision of existing parcel will facilitate future commercial development. The 
proposed development will have four (4) commercial lots ranging in size from 
approximately sixty thousand (60,000) to one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet. 
Tract A, as shown on the plat, will serve as the access easement for the three (3) lots 
located west of Village Park Drive. A separate access easement area is shown for lot 
four (4), located east of Village Park Drive. Individual site plan applications will be 
submitted for each commercial parcel at the time of development. 
 

B. Walmart Variance (Alternate Key 1170605) 
 

 Board Members:    Others: Greg Beliveau, LPG 
Al Goldberg, Chairman             Tracy Kelley, CDD                                                  
Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair                                Kelly Turner, Administrative Assistant 
Carlisle Burch               Sharon Williams, Probationary Administrative 
Fred Collins                                                     Assistant 
Walter Birriel 

 
 

 



    
Variance application submitted by Mark Asplund, Senior Project Manager of Walmart 
East Stores LP, owner of subject parcel. Applicant has designated Engineer Leopoldo 
Ayala, CPH, Inc., as acting agent. The applicant is seeking a variance from the Design 
Standards, as found in Section 162.060 of the City of Fruitland Park Land 
Development Regulations. The requested variance, if approved, will allow for a 
reduction in the parking space size from 10’ x 20’ to 10’ x 18’. Wal-Mart has elected 
to modify the current site configuration for the addition of a stand-alone Wal-Mart 
Liquor Store within the existing parking lot. Proposed parking space size would be 
consistent with existing parking spaces, as approved in the original construction plans. 

   
 
BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities 
for praise.  Note: Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation 
Policy adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable 
opportunity to be heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board. Pursuant to 
Resolution 2013-023, public comments are limited to three minutes. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  



 

 
 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                      PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                  FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

OCTOBER 15, 2020 
6:00PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Meeting called to order at 

6:01PM. Administrative Assistant Turner led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

II. ROLL CALL: Board members present with the exception of Board member Birriel. 
Present LPG Beliveau, CDD Kelley and Administrative Assistant Turner. 
 

III. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Approve regular Planning and Zoning 
Board meeting minutes from October 15, 2020. Motion to approve by Board member 
Collins. Second by Board member Burch. Approved 4-0. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: None 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

A. Fruitland Park Commons CPUD Application (Alt Key 1288088) 
 

Annexation, Rezoning and Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (LSCPA) 
application submitted by John Rehak on behalf of Benchmark Development I, LLC. 
The initial application proposed rezoning from Lake County Agricultural (A) to City 
of Fruitland Park General Commercial (C-2). Per City Land Planner recommendation, 
applicant resubmitted application to reflect rezoning to Commercial Planned Unit 
Development (CPUD), to include a conceptual plan. Applicant proposes LSCPA to 
designate the property Commercial-High Intensity to allow for commercial 
development including restaurant, hotel and retail uses.  
 
LPG Beliveau gave introduction to the development applications. Proposed 
development currently zoned Lake County Agricultural (A); application submitted to  

 Board Members:    Others: Greg Beliveau, LPG 
Al Goldberg, Chairman             Tracy Kelley, CDD                                                  
Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair                                Kelly Turner, Administrative Assistant 
Carlisle Burch        
Fred Collins 
Walter Birriel 

 
 

 



 
Planning and Zoning October 15, 2020 Minutes 
Continued page 2 of 4 

 
annex into the City of Fruitland Park and rezone to Commercial Planned Unit 
Development (CPUD). Development applications submitted in order to utilize parcel 
for a shopping center. The applicant has two similar shopping centers in Lady Lake. 
There are three applications, annexation, rezoning, and large scale comprehensive plan 
amendment (LSCPA). The property is currently owned by Lake County School Board 
who has appointed Benchmark Development I, LLC, to act as their agent for 
development application submittals.   
 
LPG reviewed annexation application and recommends approval, as proposed 
annexation is in compliance with City of Fruitland Park Land Development 
Regulations. Likewise LPG recommends approval on the proposed LCCPA. The only 
item that LPG has comments on is the rezoning application. The front setback shown 
on the plan is twenty-five (25) feet whereas fifty (50) feet is required. Applicant 
agreed to adhere to the fifty (50) foot setback. Landscaping will comply with adopted 
Land Development Regulations, therefore no variance is required. LPG recommends a 
change to the Master Development Agreement (MDA) to comply with the proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment. LPG Beliveau recommended a change to the 
verbiage outlined on page two; item “w” added to allow for a twenty (20) percent 
deviation from the conceptual plan without having to amend the Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) or Comprehensive Plan policy. The adopted Future Land Use 
(FLU) element already allows for a twenty (20) percent deviation, so adding this 
clause is recommended to comply with the transportation matrix, as long as the 
transportation maximums from the transportation study are not exceeded.  
 
Board member Collins asked if the twenty (20) percent applies to the number of 
allowed hotel rooms. LPG clarified the concept plan shows 130 rooms, which may be 
increased by twenty (20) percent, so long as a decrease is made in another area. 
 
LPG Beliveau clarified the required landscape buffer is twenty-five (25) feet while the 
required building setback is fifty (50) feet. 
 
LPG Beliveau gave notification update; nineteen (19) mailings were sent to 
surrounding property owners, one (1) was returned opposed, zero (0) were returned 
unopposed and zero (0) were returned undeliverable. 
 
LPG Beliveau stated access is being coordinated with Lake County Public Works 
Department. A future connection to Oliver Lane will be sought after. A dual boulevard 
is hopeful to the North.  
 
City of Fruitland Park water and sewer are available to serve the development.  
 
A full access median is proposed. No traffic light is proposed at this time. Future 
development may warrant a traffic signal.  
 
 



 
Planning and Zoning October 15, 2020 Minutes 
Continued page 3 of 4 

 
Board member Dicus asked whether Benchmark Development I, LLC, has purchased 
the property from the Lake County School Board. LPG Beliveau responded the 
property is under contract pending development application approvals. 
 
Martin DelleBovi in attendance on behalf of Benchmark Development I, LLC, and 
available to answer any questions. My. DelleBovi stated environmental assessments 
have been completed. There have been no impacts to subject property regarding a 
historic spill from a tank located on a neighboring property; property has been tested 
and cleared. Mr. DelleBovi is aware of environmental requirements regarding sand 
skinks. Benchmark Development I, LLC, will secure specific permit in the future; if 
the permit is issued forty-five (45) days prior to moving dirt, the permit will expire and 
a reapplication will be necessary. An environmental assessment report has been 
submitted and if the presence of sand skinks are found upon permitting, applicants 
understand the process of relocation.  
 
Benchmark Development I, LLC, is the process of securing an access permit with 
Lake County Public Works Department. 
 
Board member Dicus made motion to accept the annexation request as presented. 
Second by Board member Collins. Approved 4-0. 
 
Board member Collins made motion to accept the rezoning request as presented. 
Second by Board member Burch. Approved 4-0. 

 
Board member Collins made motion to repeal the previous vote in regards to the 
rezoning application. Second by Board member Dicus. Approved 4-0. 
 
Board member Collins made motion to accept the rezoning as amended. Second by 
Board member Dicus. Approved 4-0. 
 
Board member Dicus made motion to accept the Large Scale Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment as presented. Second by Board member Collins. Approved 4-0. 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: Chair Goldberg thanked Planning and Zoning Board 
members for their attendance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Carl Yauk, 1123 Ritter Road, The Villages, FL, questioned whether 
subject property is currently located within the City Limits of Fruitland Park. LPG Beliveau 
responded the item is on the agenda for annexation.  
 
Mr. Yauk questioned whether applicant may develop the property if they do not incorporate into 
the City of Fruitland Park. LPG Beliveau responded the applicant may approach Lake County with  

 
 



 
Planning and Zoning October 15, 2020 Minutes 
Continued page 4 of 4 

 
their request. Mr. Yauk questioned whether the applicant must be incorporated within the City of 
Fruitland Park to accomplish development request. LPG Beliveau responded Lake County would 
require the applicant to apply with the City of Fruitland Park for utility services. The City of 
Fruitland Park Commission could then decide whether the developer must annex into the City of 
Fruitland Park. Mr. Yauk questioned if the applicant could develop without incorporating into the 
City of Fruitland Park. LPG Beliveau responded they may attempt to develop without 
incorporating into the City of Fruitland Park.  
 
Mr. Yauk questioned whether the development would generate liabilities to the City. Will there be 
additional costs to be incurred by the City for utilities? LPG Beliveau responded costs to connect 
are borne by the developer. Mr. Yauk questioned whether additional costs would be incurred by 
the City for Police and Fire services? LPG Beliveau stated city police and fire services are already 
provided in the area in which subject property is located. Mr. Yauk questioned the height of the 
proposed hotel. CDD Kelley responded the height of the hotel will be listed on the Site Plan 
application. Mr. Yauk questioned if additional fire equipment is required to service the hotel, who 
incurs the cost of this equipment? LPG Beliveau responded another developer has previously been 
approved to develop five (5) and six (6) story buildings, contingent upon the purchase of fire 
equipment needed to service said buildings. Board member Collins stated the maximum hotel 
height in subject development agreement is forty-five (45) feet. LPG Beliveau stated the City 
currently has the equipment required to serve the proposed hotel. 
 
Board Chair Goldberg announced the three minute allotment for public comments has been 
exceeded. LPG Beliveau stated additional comments may be directed to Tracy Kelley, Director, 
Community Development Department, during normal business hours. 
 
Mr. DelleBovi stated fire department requirements must be met prior to building permit approval. 
If the proposed hotel exceeds proposed height, additional requirements would be levied at that 
time.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 6:32PM 









1287863 3911258

FRUITLAND PARK

LEESBURG

SR 44

CR 466A

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 A:
\8 

Su
bm

itta
ls\

Vil
lag

e P
ark

 C
en

ter
\Vi

lla
ge

Pa
rkC

en
ter

_L
oc

ati
on

.m
xd

±1 inch = 1,000 feet
Date: 8/20/2020

Location Map Village Park Center
Fruitland Park, FL

CR 466A

TIM
BE

RT
OP

 LA
NE

!H

M
O

RS
E

BO
UL

EV
ARD

CR 466A

TIM
BE

RT
OP

 LA
NE

SU
M

TE
R 

CO
UN

TY
LA

KE
 C

OU
NT

Y

Sections 05, 07, 08, 17, 18
Township 19S
Range 23E

Roads
Site
City Limit
Water
Section Boundary



1ST REVISED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW LETTER 
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH VILLAGE PARK CAMPUS 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT APPLICATION 
NOVEMBER 5, 2020 

Property Owner(s): FBCL Properties, INC. 
Applicant/Agent: Kaye Jameson, P.S.M., Clymer Farner Barley, INC. 
Phone: (352) 748-3126 
Email: kjameson@cfb-inc.com    
Address: 4450 NE 83rd Rd  

    Wildwood, FL 34785 

Project Name: FBC Preliminary and Final Plat  
Parcel IDs: 05-19-24-0003-000-02200 & 05-19-24-0003-000-07400 
Alt Keys: 1287863 & 3911258 
Project Addresses:  
1000 Village Park Dr & Pine Ridge Dairy Rd 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 

Herein are the comments following the response to request for additional information number 
one (RAI #1), received October 22, 2020:  

City Attorney Review: 
1. In the Plat Dedication, No. 2 – please remove “subject to provisions and restrictions set forth

in the Declaration.” The City’s utility easement cannot be subject to declarations that can be
amended by the members upon a vote.

2. In the Plat Dedication, move the paragraph that begins, “The Association is an existing
Florida corporation…” under Notes. It is confusing to have located in the dedication and the
Association is not currently an owner of any of the property; therefore, not a signatory.

3. In Certificate of Surveyor the applicant included reference to Chapter 157 as requested;
however, please insert after Chapter 157 “, LDRs”.

City Engineer (BESH) Review:  
It appears Chapter 177 requirements have been met. See attached plat checklist. 

City Land Planner Review:  
Final concurrency analysis required at time of site plan approval of commercial lots. 

City Building Review: 
No comments. 

*See response to RAI # 2, received 11/12/20 KT

mailto:kjameson@cfb-inc.com


 Development Application Review: Page 2 

 City Code Enforcement Review: 
 No comments. 
 
 City Fire Review: 

No additional comments received following response to RAI #1 submittal. 
  
City Police Review: 
No comments received at time of review. 

  
 City Public Works Department Review: 
 No comments. 
 
 City Staff Review: 
 Request for additional information #2 to be satisfied prior to scheduled Planning and Zoning 

Board meeting. 
 
 City of Leesburg Utilities Review: 

No additional comments received following response to RAI #1 submittal. 
 

Lake County Public Schools Review: 
No comments. 

  
Lake County Public Works Review: 
No additional comments received following response to RAI #1 submittal. 

  
  
     
   







































RESOLUTION 2020-067 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA, GRANTING FINAL PLAT APPROVAL 
FOR VILLAGE PARK COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION GENERALLY 
LOCATED SOUTH OF 466A AND EAST OF MICRO RACETRACK 
ROAD; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant has petitioned for final plat approval of Village Park Commercial 
Subdivision; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village Park Commercial Subdivision consists of 7.33 +/- acres that will consist of 
4 commercial lots as well as Tract A an access and utility easement; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board and the City Commission of the City of Fruitland 
Park have considered the application in accordance with the procedures for granting Final Plat 
Approval set forth in Section 157-060(d)(20) of the City of Fruitland Park Land Development 
Code; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the Final Plat; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that the Final Plat of Village Park Commercial 
Subdivision is in compliance with the City’s land development regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF FRUITLAND PARK, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Granting of Final Plat Approval. 
Approval of the Final Plat of Village Park Commercial Subdivision of consisting of 4 commercial 
lots and Tract A, an access and utility easement, a copy of which is attached hereto, is 
GRANTED. 

 
Section 2. Effective Date. 
This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED AND RESOLVED this ___ day of December 2020, by the City Commission of the 
City of Fruitland Park, Florida. 
 
 
 
 



City of Fruitland Park  
 
 
______________________________ 
Chris Cheshire, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
Esther B. Coulson, City Clerk 
 
 
______________________________ 
 
 
Mayor Cheshire      ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Vice Mayor Gunter     ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner DeGrave ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner Mobilian ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner Bell     ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
 

 

Approved as to form and legality: 

  
Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney 

 








